
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, October 28, 2014                                                                                                 City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Meeting with the Arts Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  September 9, 20414 Regular Meeting; September 23, 2014 Regular Meeting; and 

September 30, 2014 Special Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  October 9 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  October 15 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  October 9 meeting. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  October 23 meeting; September 25 

meeting canceled. 
• Future Meetings:  Planning:  Next meeting November 6; both October meetings canceled. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Testimony from the Public Regarding 2015 Revenues Sources and Possible Increase in  

Property Tax Revenues (Hendrickson/Parker) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Select Aquatic Center Temporary Art (Patterson) 
3. Consider Appointment to Arts Commission (Patterson) 
4. Discuss Animal Control Contract Extension (Hendrickson) 
5. Discuss Surface Water Management Rate Study (Vondran) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
 
ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  October 28, 2014   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  SEPTEMBER 9, 2014 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES; SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES; AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the September 9, 2014 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes; September 23, 2014 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes; and September 30, 2014 City Council Special 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

 

1 of 71



Unapproved Draft – September 9, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 9, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 9, 2014, at 7:10 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Wayne Snoey. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
excuse Councilmembers Cimaomo and Lanza and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner.  Vote:  4-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, 
Personnel Manager; Casey Parker, Deputy Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing 
Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Agenda as amended to postpone the Fire Prevention Week Proclamation to the 
next regular council meeting on September 23 and to move Consent Agenda Item C-3 to 
the first item of New Business.  Vote:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Lila Henderson, Executive Director of Maple Valley Food Bank, accepted the Saturday, 
September 27, 2014, Mayor’s Day of Concern for the Hungry Proclamation. 

• Personnel & Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm accepted the October 2014 
Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 71



Unapproved Draft – September 9, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington resident, requested council to consider a 
ban on plastic bags and Styrofoam take-out containers. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  June 3, 2014 City Council Special Joint Meeting with Black Diamond & Maple 

Valley Minutes and June 24, 2014 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #31377-31437, including ACH Payments, in the Amount of 

$452,587.81, Dated August 5, 2014; Vouchers #31438-31439, in the Amount of $6,849.55, 
Dated August 14, 2014; Vouchers #31440-31494, including ACH Payments, in the 
Amount of $244,480.88, Dated August 19, 2014; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002732253-
1002732267 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002732420-1002732420 and City of 
Covington Vouchers #5015-5015 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount 
of $221,806.44, Dated August 15, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002778667-
1002778683 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $170,999.61, 
Dated August 29, 2014. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Amended Consent Agenda.  Vote:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Comments and Consider Ordinance Adopting Proposed 2014 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendments. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no public comments, Mayor Harto closed the comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  11-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON UPDATING THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN BY AMENDING 
THE PARK AND RECREATION ELEMENT, CHAPTER 6; AND 
AMENDING THE CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN ELEMENT, 
CHAPTER 10; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND SETTING 
THE EFFECTIVE DATE.     

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 11-14 relating to amendments to the Park and Recreation Element 

3 of 71



Unapproved Draft – September 9, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
and the Capital Facilities Plan Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  Vote:  4-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
2.  Review and Direction on Potential Amendments to the Temporary Sign Code. 
  
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart and City Attorney Sara 
Springer provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to proceed with Option No. 3:  
to schedule another study session with the council to discuss areas of concern, how the 
previous policy direction compares to the existing sign code, highlight areas where that 
policy direction is more restrictive or less restrictive than the existing sign code, and 
provide any additional information to the council, as requested, to assist in making policy 
decisions. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
3.  (Previously C-3).  Award Bid for 156th Avenue SE Pavement Rehabilitation. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Vondran provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
award the bid of the 156th Avenue SE Rehabilitation Project to Icon Materials in the 
amount of $266,291.00.  Vote:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
authorize the Interim City Manager to execute a task order with the city’s on-call 
consultant, Gray & Osborne, for construction management not to exceed $33,000.  Vote:  4-
0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  (Previously 3).  Approve School Resource Officer Agreement. 
 
Covington Police Chief Kevin Klason provided the staff report for this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Chief Klason provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
authorize the Interim City Manager to enter into an agreement with Kent School District 
in substantial form of the proposed agreement, providing for a School Resource Officer.  
Vote:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
 
5.  (Previously 4).  Annual Aquatics Update Presentation. 
 
Aquatics Supervisor Rachel Bahl gave a PowerPoint presentation on this item. 

4 of 71



Unapproved Draft – September 9, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Bahl provided responses. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Personnel Manager Noreen Beaufrere asked for council consensus regarding two items on the 
Draft City Manager Recruitment Brochure. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to keep the city manager salary range at the 
current level and keep the application deadline of October 19, 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 71



Unapproved Draft–September 23, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 23, 2014 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 23, 2014, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey (arrived @ 
7:25 p.m.), and Jeff Wagner. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Snoey who would be arriving late.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, 
Personnel Manager; Casey Parker, Deputy Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara 
Springer, City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor; and 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
approve the Agenda. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to approve the 
Agenda as amended to move Council/Staff Comments – Future Agenda Topics to after the 
Public Hearing and before Continued Business and to add an Executive Session after 
Continued Business and before New Business.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

• Captain Kyle Ohashi, Kent Regional Fire Authority, accepted a proclamation for Fire 
Prevention Week. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
 

6 of 71



Unapproved Draft–September 23, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
 

 2 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  City Council July 8, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes and City Council July 22, 

2014 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 
C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #31495-31542, including ACH Payments, in the Amount of 

$202,176.99, Dated September 2, 2014; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002824137-
1002824155 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1002824172-1002824172 Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $163,266.78, Dated September 12, 2014. 
 

C-3. Award Street Sweeping Contract. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the August 14 and 
September 11 meetings. 

: 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Steven Pand reported on the August 20 meeting; the 
September 17 meeting was canceled. 
 
Planning Commission – Community Development Director Richard Hart reported on the 
August 21 and September 18 meetings; the September 4 meeting was canceled. 
 
Arts Commission – Vice Chair Ed White reported on the August 14 and September 11 
meetings. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported that the July 24 and August 
28 meetings. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Comments and Consider Ordinance Extending Recreational Marijuana Interim 
Zoning Regulations. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-14 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 
06-14 TO EXTEND THE INTERIM ZONING REGULATIONS 

7 of 71



Unapproved Draft–September 23, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
 

 3 

FOR RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCTION, 
PROCESSING, AND RETAIL USES FOR AN ADDITIONAL SIX 
MONTHS; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
EXTENSION; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
adopt Ordinance No. 12-14 extending the interim zoning regulations for recreational 
marijuana production, processing, and retail uses for an additional six months.  Vote:  7-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
2.  Continue Discussion of Right of Way Design Guidelines. 
 
Public Works Director Don Vondran gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Vondran provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to present the design options 
to the Arts Commission to receive commissioners’ input and ideas regarding an art 
element. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Potential Litigation. (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 8:03 to 8:37 p.m. 
 
Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for 20 minutes.  
At 8:20 p.m. Interim City Manager Rob Hendrickson announced the Executive Session would 
continue for another 10 minutes. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
3.  Adopt Hazard Mitigation Plan Resolution. 
 
Public Works Director Don Vondran gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and compliments. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN. 

8 of 71



Unapproved Draft–September 23, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
 

 4 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 14-16 adopting the City of Covington Hazard Mitigation Plan.  Vote:  
7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Discuss Letter to School District on Waiver of School Impact Fees for Town Center Mixed-
Use Project. 
 
Councilmember Lanza recused himself from this item and left the Council Chambers. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
authorize the Mayor to work with city staff to draft and send a letter on behalf of the City 
Council to the Kent School District and the Kent School District Board indicating the 
City’s position that it retains the authority to implement the low income school impact fee 
exemption.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Councilmember Lanza returned to the Council Chambers and rejoined the meeting at 9:03 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

9 of 71



Unapproved Draft – September 30, 2014 Special Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 28, 2014 
 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 30, 2014 
 
The Special Meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, September 30, 2014, at 5:00 p.m., with Mayor 
Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Wayne Snoey. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Snoey who had a work conflict.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Sara 
Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the special meeting to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Potential Litigation. (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 5:03 to 5:49 p.m. 
 
Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for 20 minutes 
after which no further action was anticipated.  At 5:21 p.m. it was announced the Executive 
Session would continue for another 10 minutes.  At 5:35 it was announced the Executive Session 
would continue for another five minutes.  At 5:43 it was announced the Executive Session would 
continue for another five minutes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:50 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

10 of 71



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  October 28, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #31641-31693, including ACH Payments and Electronic Funds 
Transfers in the Amount of $435,786.66, Dated October 14, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #31641-31693, including ACH 
Payments and Electronic Funds Transfers in the Amount of $435,786.66, 
Dated October 14, 2014. 
 
 
 
  
 

 

11 of 71



12 of 71



13 of 71



14 of 71



15 of 71



16 of 71



17 of 71



18 of 71



19 of 71



20 of 71



21 of 71



22 of 71



 Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting                     
 Date: October 28, 2014 
 

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE 
PUBLIC AND PRESENTATION FROM STAFF REGARDING 2015 REVENUE 
SOURCES AND POSSIBLE INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Description of 2015 Revenue Sources 
2. PowerPoint Presentation 
3. 2014-2020 Base Revenue and Expenditure Forecast – All Funds 
4. Property Tax Worksheet 

 
COUNCILMEMBERS AND STAFF: PLEASE REMEMBER TO BRING YOUR 
PRELIMINARY 2015 BUDGET WORKBOOK BINDERS TO THE MEETING. 

THANK YOU! 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:   
This public hearing is required under state law (RCW 84.55.120) to consider possible increases 
in property tax revenues and to review other revenue sources that support the City’s general 
fund.  The Interim City Manager will review the history of Covington’s revenue collections, the 
current year’s collections, and 2015’s revenue projections.  
 
This hearing, mandated by law, should focus on the City’s revenue sources and potential 
adjustments to property tax revenues. The deadline for setting 2015 property tax levies for cities 
in King County is November 30, 2014. 
 
It is the policy of the City to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance  ____Resolution  _____Motion       X    Other 
 
 

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED AT THIS MEETING 

23 of 71



 

   
 

DESCRIPTION OF 2015 REVENUE SOURCES 
 
This summary describes each of the major revenue sources that appear in the 2015 budget by 
category. Budget amounts are based on the best available information at the time of budget 
preparation. 
 
Beginning Fund Balance All Funds 
This is the estimate of funds remaining unspent at the end of the previous budget year and 
available for use in the following budget year. This amount will fluctuate annually depending on 
the amount of reserves, under or over collection of revenues, and under or over expenditure of 
appropriations. 
 

TAXES 
 
Property Taxes General Fund 
Property taxes are one of the largest and most stable sources of revenue for the City. The City 
has budgeted, as state law limits allow, a levy increase of 101%. An increment for new 
construction is also added to this amount. The estimated levy for 2015 is $2,474,169. The 
taxable assessed valuation (AV) is $1,898,857,162 which includes $9,167,235 in new 
construction.  The estimated levy rate is $1.30298/$1,000 AV.   
 
Total assessed value has increased 18% from 2014 to 2015. 
 

  

 $1,483,443  

 $1,655,993  

 $1,880,099  

 $2,112,709  

 $1,815,496  

 $1,720,936  

 $1,578,830   $1,537,455  

 $1,608,714  

 $1,898,857  

 $1,000,000  

 $1,200,000  

 $1,400,000  

 $1,600,000  

 $1,800,000  

 $2,000,000  

 $2,200,000  

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 

Total Taxable Assessed Values 
Real and Personal Property 

For the Fiscal Years 2006 through 2015 

ATTACHMENT 1

24 of 71



 

Sales Taxes General Fund/Parks Fund 
Sales taxes are subject to fluctuation from year to year due to changes in the economy and the 
buying habits of consumers. Sales tax is distributed monthly and is based on sales from two 
months previous. Revenues for 2015 are estimated at $3,391,790 which is a decrease of 3.3% 
from the 2014 budget. Sales tax is currently divided between the General Fund and Parks Fund 
84% and 16% respectively. The total sales tax of 8.6% is distributed among public agencies as 
follows: 
 
 
 

Sales Tax Distribution 
Agency Tax 

Rate  
State of Washington 6.500% 
City of Covington 0.926% 
King County/METRO 0.900% 
King County  0.075% 
King County Criminal Justice Levy 0.099% 
King County Mental Health 0.100% 
    
Total Sales Tax Rate  8.600% 
  
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
  

$0 
$500 

$1,000 
$1,500 
$2,000 
$2,500 
$3,000 
$3,500 
$4,000 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 

 
 

Sales Tax by Classifications 
For the Fiscal Years 2006 through 2015 

 
 

Retail Food Services Contracting Other 

2006 - 2013 - Actuals 2014 - Estimated Actuals     2015 - Budget 
 

25 of 71



 

Utility Taxes General Fund/Parks Fund/Street Fund 
Utility taxes are imposed on utilities such as electricity, natural gas, solid waste, cable, 
telephones, storm drainage, and cellular phones. In 2007, the City adopted a 5.5% utility tax.  In 
2011 the City increased the rate to 6%.  The new rate took effect February 1, 2012.  The 
additional 0.5% is dedicated to the maintenance and operation of City parks.  In June 2012, the 
City began charging its own drainage utility; these taxes are remitted to the General Fund.  
Revenues for 2015 are estimated at $2,116,790. Utility tax revenues are allocated between the 
General Fund, Parks Fund, and Street Fund.  
 

 
 

 
 
Criminal Justice Sales Tax General Fund 
King County levies an optional 0.1% sales tax to support criminal justice programs, under 
authority granted by the State. This optional tax, collected by the State, is distributed as follows: 
10% to the County, and the remainder to cities and towns on the basis of population. The 2015 
estimate of $417,500 is based on inflation and population growth. This tax is distributed monthly 
to cities.  
 
Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) Real Estate Excise Tax Funds 
The real estate excise tax is levied on all sales of real estate, measured by the full selling price, 
including the amount of any liens, mortgages, and other debts given to secure the purchase. 
The state levies this tax at the rate of 1.28%. The City has also authorized a locally imposed tax 
of 0.5%, in two 0.25% increments, replacing that tax formally levied by King County. Both 
increments must be spent for local capital improvements, identified under the capital facilities 
plan element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. The amount of tax collected depends totally 
upon real estate sales activity for residential and non-residential, including new construction and 

 $-  

 $500  

 $1,000  

 $1,500  

 $2,000  

 $2,500  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 

Utility Tax by Classification  
For the Fiscal Years 2008 Through 2015 

Electric Gas Solid Waste Cable Telephone Storm Drainage Cellular/Pager 

2008 – 2013 Actuals 2014 - Estimated Actuals    2015 - Budget 
 

26 of 71



 

economic fluctuations. The 2015 estimates are based on estimated changes in real estate 
prices, new residential development increases, and new non-residential development increases. 
Distribution occurs on the 10th of each month to cities in King County. The 2015 revenue 
estimate is $350,000.  
 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 
 
Building, Permits, Misc. Development Services Fund 
Licenses and permit activities are user fees derived from various regulatory activities of the City. 
Building permit revenues are based on staff estimates and are applied to the Development 
Services Fund. In 2015, $931,930 is estimated based on 63 new single family permits, 
anticipated commercial fees, and land use revenues.  A fee of $60 is collected for business 
licenses from those businesses that conduct activities within the City. This fee is collected 
annually and is also applied to the Development Services Fund. The 2015 revenue estimate for 
this license fee is $80,000. For 2015, all other permits and licenses such as sign permits and 
peddler’s permits are estimated at $5,300.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
Cable TV Franchise Street Fund 
Cable TV franchise fees, which are applied to the Street Fund, are based on population growth. 
For 2015 the estimated fees are $233,500. 
 
 
 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

300 

350 

400 

450 

500 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Number of Building Permits Issued 
For Fiscal Years 2005 Through 2014 

2004 – 2013 Actuals   2014 - YTD 
 

27 of 71



 

Solid Waste Administration General Fund 
In 2013, the City entered into a franchise agreement with Republic Services.  For 2015 the 
estimated revenue is $75,000. 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

 
Liquor Excise Tax General Fund 
The 2015 estimate of $34,500 is based on the City’s population and per capita estimates 
provided by Municipal Research Services Center.  
 
Liquor Board Profits General Fund 
The State is now collecting revenue in the form of license fees from distributors and retailers.  A 
portion of these “liquor profits” come to the City.  The initiative provides that each recipient 
receive no less than it received from the liquor revolving fund during a set comparable period.  
What this means for the City is, we will be receiving the same distribution each year in the future 
with no allowances for inflation.  To be eligible to receive this revenue and Liquor Excise Taxes, 
a city must devote at least 2% of its distribution to support an approved alcoholism or drug 
addiction program as well as enhanced public safety programs. The 2015 estimate of $160,550 
is based on estimates provided by Municipal Research Services Center. This money is 
distributed quarterly beginning in March.   
 
Motor Vehicle Fuel Street Fund 
State law provides that the State-levied tax on gasoline be shared with cities and towns. Of the 
base tax amount of 23 cents per gallon, 6.92% is redistributed to cities and towns to be used for 
street maintenance as well as construction, improvement, chip sealing, seal coating, and repair 
of arterial highways and city streets. These funds will be deposited in the Street Fund and used 
for the described purposes. Estimates are based on the City’s population and per capita 
estimates provided by Municipal Research Services Center. This tax is distributed on the last 
day of the month. For 2015, we are estimating $367,250.  
 
Criminal Justice Shared Revenues General Fund 
Municipal Criminal Justice Funding has shifted from application based to a per capita 
distribution. Estimates are based on the City’s population and per capita estimates provided by 
Municipal Research Services Center. For 2015, we are estimating $52,875.  
 
Recycling Grants General Fund 
The City is involved with King County and the State of Washington in an effort to encourage 
recycling. The City offers events in the spring and fall of every year. Costs for these events are 
reimbursed to the City through the grant process. For 2015 we estimate being awarded 
$24,360.  

 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 

 
Interfund Service Payments/Overhead General Fund 
These fees are collected from other funds within the City for their percentage of General Fund 
services that they require. There are two interfund payments - central services overhead and 
interfund service payments. Central services overhead is spread over every fund besides the 
General Fund based on the amount of FTEs. Each fund pays their proportional share of the 
Central Services Department which consists of things such as the building lease, office 
supplies, and IT. Beginning in 2012, the central services overhead payments are a direct 
reduction to the City’s Central Services Department base budget, therefore there is no revenue 
recorded.  

28 of 71



 

The interfund service payment is for each fund’s share of the assistance they receive from the 
City Manager, Finance, Legal, and Personnel offices. The 2015 budget is estimated at 
$896,728.  
 
Land Use/Inspection/Engineering Fees Development Services Fund 
These fees are collected for services related to the issuance of permits for both residential and 
commercial aspects of construction or capital improvements, and for services related to the 
review of plans for compliance with aspects of the various codes. Fees are generally collected 
at a level estimated to recover the cost of the service. The 2015 budget for these fees is 
estimated at $233,933.  
 
Parks Fees Parks Fund 
These fees are collected for services related to the Aquatic Center, Athletics, and Recreation 
programs.  In 2014, the City added Athletics programs which consist of programs such as 
baseball, soccer, flag football, and volleyball.  The 2015 revenues are estimated at $720,764.  
 
Surface Water Management Fees Surface Water Management Fund 
These fees are collected on developed properties within the City to maintain storm and surface 
water runoff in the City. These fees provide for things such as maintenance and repair and 
construction of storm water facilities. The 2015 budget is estimated at $1,821,451.  
 
 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 
 
District Court, False Alarm, and Miscellaneous Fines General Fund 
The City is entitled to money received in payment of fines, forfeitures, fees, costs and penalties 
associated with enforcement of local ordinances. Based on current collections we are estimating 
$94,700 in revenue for 2015. In 2015 the City will again be utilizing King County for its court 
services through an interlocal agreement. As part of the agreement, King County receives 100% 
of revenues collected to provide the City’s court services.  

 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Technology Surcharge General Fund 
These fees are collected for services related to the issuance of permits for both residential and 
commercial aspects of construction. The estimate for 2015 is $16,000. 
 
Parks Fees Parks Fund 
These miscellaneous fees are collected for locker rentals, pool rentals, concessions, etc.  The 
2015 revenues are estimated at $135,180. 
 
Interest Income All Funds 
The City will receive interest on cash balances through investment of public funds as allowed by 
law. The amount received will vary with interest rates, types and duration of investments, and 
the amount of cash available for investment during any particular budget year. The overall 2015 
estimate of $30,280 is based on annualized 2014 data, economic outlook, and the assumption 
that fund balances available for investing will be at 2014 levels. 

29 of 71



City of Covington 
Financial Forecast 

2014 - 2020 

 
 

Rob Hendrickson 
October 28, 2014 

ATTACHMENT 2

30 of 71



 
 

“If all economists were laid end to end, they 
would not reach a conclusion.” 

-George Bernard Shaw (1856-1950) 

 
  
 
 
 
 

31 of 71



Objectives 

 The economy from the top down 
 

 Revenue roll call  
 

 Fund facts 
 
 

32 of 71



A bird’s eye view 

 What’s going on across the world and the nation? 
 
 

 How are Washington and the Puget Sound area 
faring? 
 
 

 How does Covington fit into all this or does it? 
 
 
 

 
33 of 71



  Potential headwinds/tailwinds 

Headwinds Tailwinds 
 Slowing Chinese economy 
 Housing recovery 
 Instability in Middle East 

and Eastern Europe 
 Weaker than expected 

employment data 
 

 
 

 Consumer confidence 
measures increasing 

 4% GDP growth 
 Home prices starting to 

moderate 
 Existing home sales 

strengthening 
 
 
 

34 of 71



The Real Washington 

 Expanding at a moderate pace 
 Employment 
 Housing  

– Permits 
– Prices 

 Personal income 
 Inflation 

 
 35 of 71



Meanwhile closer to home… 

 Outrunning the pack 
– Puget Sound recovery continues ahead of the nation 

 

 Employment 
 
 Housing 

 
 Inflation 

 
 
 

36 of 71



Covington – mixed signals? 

 Major revenues 
– Trend is generally up 

 Healthcare  
– MultiCare groundbreaking  

 Housing 
– Existing sales continue strong 
– New homes expected to increase 

 Retail 
– Retail sales tax up 2.6% 

 
 
 

37 of 71



Property Tax 

 Assessment drops and levy rate rises. 
Conversely, assessment rises and levy rate 
drops (the teeter totter effect)  

 Add 1 percent 
 

 Add in new construction 
 

 Final worksheet tally 
38 of 71



2014 Levy Amount         $2,435,784 

X1%                24,358 

Increase in utility value                       -0- 

Plus: new construction                14,027 

Re-levy for prior year refunds                       -0- 

2014 Property Tax Levy (for 
collection in 2015) 

        $2,474,169 

Assessed Valuation  $1,898,857,162 

Estimated Levy Rate           $1.30298 

39 of 71



 640,332  
 728,426  

 797,109  
 845,335  

 948,859  
 1,069,679  

 1,188,464   1,328,852  

 1,483,585  
 1,656,116  

 1,880,427  

 2,112,709  

 1,815,514  

 1,721,207  

 1,578,929  

 1,530,339  

 1,617,694  

 1,898,857  

$0 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,500,000 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

x 
1,

00
0 

Assessed Value History 

40 of 71



$2.10 

$1.48 

$1.48 

$1.49 

$1.41 

$1.32 

$1.28 

$1.25 

$1.20 

$1.15 

$1.04 

$0.98 
$1.17 

$1.36 

 $1.48  

 1.54   1.50  

 1.30  

 $-    

 $0.50  

 $1.00  

 $1.50  

 $2.00  

 $2.50  

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Property Tax Rate History 

41 of 71



Property tax math 101 

2014 2015 % Change 

Assessed Value $1,608,713,530 $1,898,857,162 18.04% 

Tax Levy $2,427,134 $2,474,169 1.94% 

Levy Rate $1.51 $1.30 -13.64% 

Home Value $325,000 $383,616 18.04% 

Tax Assessment $490.34 $499.84 1.94% 

42 of 71



Sales Tax 

 The economy has pulled back 
 

– Consumers are still spending 
 

– Consumer confidence is up 
 

– Construction has slowed down 
 

43 of 71



 $-  

 $500,000  

 $1,000,000  

 $1,500,000  

 $2,000,000  

 $2,500,000  

 $3,000,000  

 $3,500,000  

 $4,000,000  

 $4,500,000  

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Sales Tax by Year 

Contracting Food Services Retail Other Estimate 44 of 71



Utility Tax 

 Utility tax is ahead of target through 
September 
– Due in part to the Comcast utility tax audit that 

was completed this year. 
 

 2015 expectations 
– The forecast increases utility tax slightly to 

account for population growth and small rate 
increases  

 
 

45 of 71



 $-  

 $500  

 $1,000  

 $1,500  

 $2,000  

 $2,500  

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 
Utility Tax by Classification  

For the Fiscal Years 2008 Through 2015 

Electric Gas Solid Waste Cable Telephone Storm Drainage Cellular/Pager 

46 of 71



Real Estate Excise Tax 

 New residential home sales have decreased 
significantly 
 

 Existing home sales for 2014 have exceeded 
2013 
 

  Will the trend continue? 

47 of 71



REET Collections 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
2010 20  32  58  91  116  174  202  228  243  250  272  322  
2011 140  154  171  192  222  260  288  308  334  346  366  390  
2012 25  198  208  233  276  300  343  375  402  435  467  503  
2013 45  69  69  127  176  227  276  338  402  465  536  562  
2014 26  43  66  95  129  160  210  257  292        

$0 

$100 

$200 

$300 

$400 

$500 

$600 

$ 
in

 th
ou

sa
nd

s 
(0

00
). 

   2014 Budget 

48 of 71



The meat and potatoes 

 
 
 

 FORECAST 

49 of 71



2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 4,027$           4,177$               3,385$               3,322$               3,374$               3,453$               3,565$               

REVENUES
   Sales Tax1 2,766             2,849                 2,963                 3,081                 3,205                 3,333                 3,466                 
   Property Tax 2,416             2,500                 2,575                 2,652                 2,732                 2,814                 2,898                 
   Utility Tax2 2,132             2,117                 2,181                 2,246                 2,313                 2,383                 2,454                 
   Local Criminal Justice 418                418                    435                    452                    470                    489                    509                    
   Licenses & Permits 75                  75                      75                      75                      75                      75                      75                      
   Intergovernmental Revenue 322                326                    336                    346                    356                    367                    378                    
   Charges for Services 220                542                    558                    575                    592                    610                    628                    
   Fines & Forfeitures 95                  95                      100                    105                    110                    115                    121                    
   Miscellaneous 63                  56                      58                      59                      61                      63                      65                      
   Interfund Payment 434                466                    489                    514                    539                    566                    595                    

   Operating Transfer In3 35                  35                      35                      35                      35                      35                      35                      
   BASE BUDGET REVENUES 8,976             9,479                 9,804                 10,141               10,489               10,850               11,224               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Budget Strategies -                 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES -$               -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
TOTAL SOURCES 8,976$           9,479$               9,804$               10,141$             10,489$             10,850$             11,224$             

EXPENDITURES
   Salaries and Wages 1,360             1,435                 1,492                 1,552                 1,614                 1,679                 1,746                 
   Personnel Benefits 495                531                    571                    614                    660                    709                    762                    
   Supplies 70                  60                      62                      64                      66                      68                      70                      
   Other Services and Charges 1,479             1,407                 1,469                 1,513                 1,559                 1,605                 1,653                 
   Intergovernmental 3,769             4,028                 4,225                 4,373                 4,526                 4,685                 4,849                 
   Capital Outlay 16                  -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
   Debt Service -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
   Interfund Payment for Services -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
   Central Services Cost Allocation (441)               (499)                   (524)                   (550)                   (578)                   (607)                   (637)                   
   Operating Transfer Out less debt service transfer4 935                1,549                 1,587                 1,625                 1,664                 1,704                 1,745                 

   BASE BUDGET EXPENDITURES 7,683             8,511                 8,882                 9,190                 9,510                 9,843                 10,188               

Operating Surplus/Deficit by Year 1,293$           968$                  922$                  950$                  979$                  1,007$               1,036$               
OTHER FINANCING USES
Decision Cards -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Ongoing -                     20                      -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
One-time -                     504                    -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Budget Strategies -                     -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Transfer to opportunity fund -                           -                         -                         -                         -                         
Debt Service Transfer 806                899                    901                    898                    899                    896                    896                    

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES 806                1,423                 901                    898                    899                    896                    896                    
Annual Surplus/Deficit 487                (455)                   21                      52                      80                      112                    140                    

TOTAL USES 8,489             9,934                 9,783                 10,089               10,410               10,738               11,084               

One-time Costco payout 337                337                    84                      -                         -                     -                     -                     
Sources over Uses 150                (792)                   (64)                     52                      80                      112                    140                    

   TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 4,177$           3,385$               3,322$               3,374$               3,453$               3,565$               3,706$               

Cumulative net amount available for debt service. 3,318$           2,512$               2,130$               1,229$               899$                  896$                  896$                  
Amount transferred to the debt service fund. 806$              899$                  901$                  898$                  899$                  896$                  896$                  
Remainder of debt service reserve. 2,512$           1,613$               1,229$               331$                  0$                      0$                      0$                      

COSTCO RESERVE 421$              84$                    0$                      -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

REPUBLIC SERVICES RESERVE 113$              188$                  263$                  338$                  413$                  488$                  563$                  

UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 1,131$           1,500$               1,830$               2,705$               3,040$               3,077$               3,143$               

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 4,177$           3,385$               3,322$               3,374$               3,453$               3,565$               3,706$               

20% fund balance target 1,350$           1,392$               1,459$               1,513$               1,569$               1,628$               1,689$               
Fund balance policy Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20%
Margin above/below the 20% threshold 2,827$           1,993$               1,863$               1,861$               1,884$               1,937$               2,017$               
Margin above the unreserved fund balance (219)$             108$                  371$                  1,192$               1,471$               1,449$               1,454$               

CITY OF COVINGTON
GENERAL FUND LONG RANGE FORECAST

2014-2020 Analysis in 000s
BASE BUDGET

ATTACHMENT 3

50 of 71



2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 468$           437$           430$           390$          314$          200$          46$            

REVENUES
  Licenses and Permits 234             234             240             246            252            258            265            
  Street Fuel Tax 359             367             376             386            395            405            415            
  Intergovernmental Revenues -                  -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Charges for Goods and Services 58               6                 -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Miscellaneous 1                 -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 

BASE BUDGET REVENUES 652             607             616             631            647            663            680            
  Operating Transfers In 279             477             482             487            491            496            501            
  Revenue strategies -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Insurance Recoveries -                  -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 

TOTAL REVENUES 931             1,084          1,098          1,118         1,139         1,160         1,181         

EXPENDITURES
   Salaries and Wages 345             316             366             381            396            412            428            
   Personnel Benefits 133             130             145             156            168            180            194            
   Supplies 40               61               68               70              72              74              77              
   Other Services and Charges 290             471             456             479            503            528            555            
   Intergovernmental 105             98               103             108            113            119            125            
   Capital Outlay 35               -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 
   Debt Service: Principal -                  -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 
   Interfund Payment for Services -                  -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 

Operating Transfer Out 14               -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 
BASE BUDGET EXPENDITURES 962             1,076          1,139          1,194         1,252         1,314         1,378         

  Decision Cards -                  15               -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Budget Strategies -                  -                  -                  -                 -                 -                 -                 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 962             1,091          1,139          1,194         1,252         1,314         1,378         

Operating Surplus/Deficit by Year (31)              (7)                (41)              (76)             (114)           (154)           (197)           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 437$           430$           390$           314$          200$          46$            (151)$         
10% fund balance target 95$                 108$               114$               119$              125$              131$              138$              
Fund balance policy Meets 10% Meets 10% Meets 10% Meets 10% Meets 10% Under 10% Under 10%
Margin above/below the 10% threshold 343$               323$               276$               194$              75$                (85)$               (289)$             

Notes: 
1) This worksheet makes no assumptions as to new programs and decision cards past 2015 other than ongoing costs.

CITY OF COVINGTON
STREET FUND LONG RANGE FORECAST 

2014-2020 Analysis in 000s
BASE BUDGET

 $(0.4) 

 $(0.2) 

 $-   

 $0.2  

 $0.4  

 $0.6  

 $0.8  

 $1.0  

 $1.2  

 $1.4  

 $1.6  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 

Street Fund Operations 

Total 
Revenues 

Total 
Expenditures 
w/Decision 
Cards 

Ending Fund 
Balance 

51 of 71



 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 301$          225$          109$           21$             (105)$          (271)$          (480)$          

REVENUES
  Sales Tax1 527            543            565             587             611             635             661             
  Intergovernmental Revenues 118            -                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                  
  Charges for Goods and Services -                 -                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                  
  Aquatics Fees 661            626            630             633             636             639             642             
  Athletics & Recreation 114            194            199             205             212             218             224             
  Miscellaneous 42              36              5                 5                5                 5                 5                 
  Other Financing Sources -                 -                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                  

   BASE BUDGET REVENUES 1,462         1,399         1,399          1,430          1,463          1,498          1,533          
  Operating Transfers In 689            1,073         1,105          1,138          1,172          1,208          1,244          

TOTAL REVENUES 2,151         2,472         2,504          2,569          2,636          2,705          2,777          

EXPENDITURES
   Salaries and Wages 956            1,031         1,093          1,136          1,182          1,229          1,278          
   Personnel Benefits 279            309            336             361             388             417             448             
   Supplies 113            132            138             142             146             151             155             
   Other Services and Charges 772            966            987             1,017          1,047          1,079          1,111          
   Intergovernmental 10              12              12               12              12               12               12               
   Capital Outlay 70              -                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                  
   Operating Transfer 27              27              27               27              27               27               27               

   BASE BUDGET EXPENDITURES 2,227         2,477         2,592          2,695          2,802          2,914          3,032          
  Decision Cards -                 111            -                  -                 -                  -                  -                  
  Budget Strategies -                 -                 -                  -                 -                  -                  -                  

     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,227         2,588         2,592          2,695          2,802          2,914          3,032          

Operating Surplus/Deficit by Year (76)             (116)           (88)              (126)           (166)            (209)            (255)            
ENDING FUND BALANCE 225$          109$          21$             (105)$         (271)$          (480)$          (735)$          

10% fund balance target 220$          245$          257$           267$           278$           289$           300$           
Fund balance policy Meets 10% Under 10% Under 10% Under 10% Under 10% Under 10% Under 10%
Margin above/below the 10% threshold 5$              (136)$         (236)$          (372)$         (549)$          (769)$          (1,036)$       
Notes:

1) This worksheet makes no assumptions as to new programs and decision cards past 2015 other than ongoing costs.

Footnotes: 

CITY OF COVINGTON
PARKS & RECREATION SERVICES FUND LONG RANGE FORECAST

2014-2020 Analysis in 000s
BASE BUDGET

1 Sales tax is allocated at 84% of forecasted revenues to the General Fund and 16% to the Parks Fund.

 $(1.0) 

 $(0.5) 

 $-   

 $0.5  

 $1.0  

 $1.5  

 $2.0  

 $2.5  

 $3.0  

 $3.5  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 

Parks & Recreation Fund Operations 

Intergovernmental 
Revenue 

Transfer In 

Miscellaneous 

Aquatics Fees 

Sales Tax 

Total Expenditures 
w/Decision Cards 

Ending Fund Balance 

52 of 71



10/23/2014

2014 Levy Amount= 2,435,784$                                    

x1% 24,358                                           

Increase in utility value -                                                 

Plus: New Construction 14,027                                           

Relevy for prior year refunds -                                                 

2014 Property Tax Levy 2,474,169$                                    

Assessed Valuation 1,898,857,162$                             

2014 Estimated Levy Rate= 1.30298$                                       

Estimated Property Tax
2015

City of Covington

2014 2015 % change

Assessed Value 1,608,713,530.00$   1,898,857,162.00$   18.04%

Tax Levy 2,427,133.97$          2,474,168.84$          1.94%

Levy Rate 1.50874$                  1.30298$                  -13.64%

Home value 325,000.00$             383,616.20$             18.04%

Tax Assessment 490.34$                    499.84$                    1.94%

Home value Tax Amount
 $    325,000  =  $   423 

EXAMPLE

ATTACHMENT 4

53 of 71



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 28, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  AQUATIC CENTER TEMPORARY ART SELECTION 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
None 
 
PREPARED BY:  Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager  
 
EXPLANATION: 
In the 2014 city budget, council funded commissioning a public art project at the Covington 
Aquatic Center, including design and installation of an artwork anchorage system, and temporary 
artwork lease and installation.  The purpose of this agenda item is for council to review and 
approve the selection of the city’s first public art piece, in accordance with the city’s adopted 
public art policy.   
 
The Arts Commission has invested many hours researching and planning this project since their 
joint meeting with council in October, 2013.  Commission Vice Chair, Ed White, who is a 
mechanical engineer, took the lead on the project.  Members of the Arts Commission visited the 
aquatic center to determine the most practical and aesthetically pleasing location for the 
placement of art.  The main podium in the plaza was selected.  The recommended location is 
supported by the Aquatics Supervisor and staff. 
 
At their July 10, 2014 meeting, the Arts Commission approved the language for the city’s call for 
artists developed by commission members White and Cook.  In an effort to lessen the burden on 
commissioners and staff, the Arts Commission selected the Western States Arts Federation’s 
service CaFÉ™ to administer the call for artists.  The city’s “call” was posted from August 15 
through September 8. 
 
Seventy-three pieces of art were submitted to the city for consideration.  An art selection panel 
consisting of the Arts Commission, the city’s Aquatics Supervisor and the city’s Parks Planner 
independently reviewed and rated each piece of art with a numerical value ranging from one to 
seven.  Each member of the panel rated the same piece of art as their first choice. 
 
The panel again reviewed and discussed the entries as a group at the September 11, 2014 Arts 
Commission meeting and unanimously selected the metal sculpture “SeaHorse” as their 
recommendation to council for placement at the Covington Aquatic Center through October 31, 
2015.   
 
The anchorage system has been reviewed and supported by the city’s Chief Building Official and 
by the Development Review Engineer.  The anchorage system concept and design is adaptable to 
many locations located in the city.  The Public Works maintenance staff is confident they can 
safely and effectively install the art piece per the anchorage system concept. 

54 of 71



 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Direct the Arts Commission to do further research and return at a later date with an 
updated recommendation. 

2. Reject the recommended art piece and direct the Arts Commission to run another 
selection process. 

3. Reject the art piece and proceed no further. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:   
The approved 2014 decision card for public art was $4,000.  The current estimated cost of the 
proposed project includes:  call to artists service ($525), artist stipend ($1,500), installation 
materials ($1,000), and marketing and public art event ($975). 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance        Resolution     X   Motion          Other 
 

Council member ________________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the selection and temporary installation of the metal sculpture 
“SeaHorse” as recommended by the Arts Commission 

 
 

REVIEWED BY: Interim City Manager; Deputy Finance Director, Parks and Recreation 
Director 

 

55 of 71



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 28, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE ARTS COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
    Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
            
ATTACHMENTS:  Application provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  There are currently three vacant positions:  No. 1, No. 3, and No. 4.  The term 
for Position No. 1 ends May 31, 2016.  The terms for Position Nos. 3 and 4 end May 31, 2017. 
 
Paul Selland was interviewed by a Council subcommittee on October 14, 2014 for an opening on 
the Economic Development Council.  The City Council appointed Ed Cook to CEDC.  Paul 
Selland, a Covington resident, requested to also be considered for the Arts Commission.  There 
was Council consensus at the October 14 City Council meeting to add an agenda item to consider 
his appointment to the Arts Commission. 
 
NOTE:  Ordinance No. 11-10. Membership, terms, residence requirements:  “The Arts 
Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City Council, two of which may be 
youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 at the start of their terms.  Up to two 
of the members may reside outside the City, but those outside must reside within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits. The remaining five members must work or reside within the City 
limits.” 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open positions. 
 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 3 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2017. 
 

 
REVIEWED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager  
 Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
 Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 

56 of 71



Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 28, 2014   
 
SUBJECT:  INTEREST IN OPTIONING THE TWO-YEAR EXTENSION CLAUSE IN THE 

CURRENT ANIMAL CONTROL AGREEMENT 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager  
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In June 2010, the County created a partnership with 26 cities within the County called Regional 
Animal Services of King County (RASKC). In 2012, 25 cities including Covington contracted 
with the County for animal services for a 3-year term, covering 2013 through 2015.  
 
The RASKC program and services are supported directly by program revenues (pet licensing, 
and fees/fines), as well as the General Funds from King County and many of the contracting 
cities. In 2013, RASKC program generated revenues supported 49% of the RASKC program 
expenses, with pet licensing accounting for 44% and fees/fines accounting for 5%. The 
remaining 51% of operating expenses are supported by contributions from the County’s General 
Fund and payments from contract cities.  
 
RASKC pet licensure rate of approximately 21% is on the high end of animal services programs 
in the Country, but is insufficient to fund the overall program. RASKC uses mailings, both direct 
and saturation; creates and implements jurisdictional marketing campaigns, partnering with over 
450 pet licensing sales and/or information providers; uses door-to-door canvassing; and has a 
presence at dozens of events annually.  
 
The cost allocation model assigns 80% based on use and 20% based on population to provide 
correlation between costs and use of the system. Credits are provided for high-use cities. 
Assistance to other cities comes in the form of license support in order to increase license 
revenues within each city receiving the assistance. Cities receiving license revenue support are 
required to provide specific in-kind assistance to help generate license revenues.  
  
The County has been in discussions with cities for several months regarding the Regional 
Animal Control Services Interlocal Agreement beyond 2015. The current agreement expires at 
the end of 2015 and the Joint City County Collaboration (J4C) has discussed the possibility of 
either a two-year extension (as provided for in the current agreement) or entering into 
negotiations for a successor agreement. 
 
The County Executive supports the two-year extension under the same terms and conditions as 
the current Agreement. Such an extension would take the Agreement through the end of 2017. 
Cities have been asked about their interest in moving ahead with the extension.  

57 of 71



 
The County is requesting a non-binding indication of interest in extending the Agreement for two 
years. If all cities currently contracting with King County for animal services agree to the 
extension, the County and cities do not need to enter into formal negotiations. If RASKC does 
not receive notice of interest in extending for two years from all 25 of the contract cities, 
RASKC will initiate the negotiations process.  
 
Negotiating the current ILA was a complex and lengthy undertaking, consuming almost 18 
months. Given the interdependent nature of the contracting model, the contracting parties agreed 
to certain prescribed contracting milestones so all parties would: a) know the costs of services to 
their jurisdiction, and b) should parties NOT agree, provide sufficient time for alternative service 
provision arrangement to be secured. The current ILA contains the following contracting 
milestones:  
 

• September 4, 2014 – RASKC/Partner Cities convene for ILA extension discussions/ 
negotiations 

• December 14, 2014 – County notifies cities of March 1, 2015 deadline for ILA extension; 
County provides cities final estimate of 2015 payment calculation 

• March 1, 2015 – Deadline for RASKC/Partner Cities notification of ILA extension 
• April 5, 2015 – County informs cities of those seeking extension 
• July  1, 2015 – Formal deadline for contracting parties to extend ILA 

 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Do not authorize the non-binding agreement and provide direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $56,198 (projected) for 2015, up from $53,993 (projected) for 2014.  For the 
two-year extension estimated costs for 2016 are $114,151 and for 2017 they are $120,896. These 
estimates are based on 2013 usage and 2014 population. While these estimates are high they can 
be reduced through pet license revenue. The county offers Licensing Support, a new program 
that returns $1.50 for every $1.00 spent. However, staff needs to notify King County by October 
31 if we wish to participate. In addition, a free calling service is available to remind pet owners 
to renew their licenses. Staff recommends utilizing these resources to help contain costs.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution    X   Motion    X    Other 
 

1) Council member ____________ moves, Council member 
_________________ seconds, to authorize the city manager to sign a non-
binding agreement stating interest in extending the Regional Animal 
Services King County Interlocal Agreement for two years ending in 2017.  
 

2) By Council consent, staff is authorized to move forward with the 
Licensing Support program and the automated phone renewal program.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director; City Attorney 

58 of 71



Agenda Item 5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  October 28, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION OF SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 

RATE STUDY 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. SWM Revenue vs. Expenditures  - Current Funding Levels 
2. SWM Expenditures and Fund Balance - Current Funding Levels 
3. SWM Capital Needs 
4. SWM Revenue vs Expenditures – 5% annual rate increase – No Capital Expenditures 
5. SWM Revenue vs Expenditures – 5% annual rate increase – All Capital Needs 
6. SWM Expenditures and Fund Balance – 5% annual rate increase – All Capital Needs  
7. SWM Expenditures and Fund Balance – 7% annual rate increase – All Capital Needs 
8. SWM Rate Increases and Comparisons 

 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Over the last few years the SWM fund has developed a significant fund balance.  Currently there 
is about $2 million that has not been specifically programmed or designated for expenditure.  
However, recently our annual operating expenditures for SWM exceed our annual revenue.  
Based on long range forecasts, taking into account inflation, the expenditures will continue to 
exceed revenues and increase annually by about 5% (see Attachment 1).  Without additional 
revenue, the deficit spending will result in an annual reduction of the fund balance and is 
projected to drop below our required reserve fund balance by 2019 (see Attachment 2).  
 
In addition, there are several SWM capital improvement projects and SWM maintenance 
projects that are needed to maintain functionality of our SWM infrastructure as well as remain in 
compliance with our NPDES permit. Those needs have been programmed over the next 6 years 
and results in a cost of over $2.4 million and can be seen in Attachment 3.  On the surface it 
seems that we are only short $400,000 from the $2.4 million needed and the $2 million in fund 
balance.  However, of the $2 million in fund balance we need to maintain a reserve that equates 
to about $400,000 which results in a net of $1.6 million in undesignated fund balance.  Therefore 
the funds necessary to address the capital needs are closer to $800,000 plus the annual projected 
deficit spending for the ongoing operational costs.   
 
The City currently has an annual residential SWM rate of $175.66 which averages about $14.64 
per month.  This rate has been in effect since 2011 and was a 3% increase from the previous 
year.  There are no projected rate increases included in the revenue projections.  As mentioned 
above, our current SWM operating expenditures already exceed our revenues.  The capital needs, 
mentioned above, also do not include increases due to residential developments, as well as, 
future road projects that install additional SWM infrastructure that we maintain.   

59 of 71



 
In order to compensate just for the annual projected increases in operational expenditures (no 
capital needs addressed) the SWM rates would need to be increased by about 5% annually (see 
Attachment 4).  If we included all the programmed capital needs with the 5% annual SWM rate 
increase we would still drop below the reserve fund balance in 2018 (see Attachments 5 and 6).  
In order to address the projected operational deficit spending and meet all the capital needs the 
annual SWM rate would need to be increased to about 7% annually (see Attachment 7). 
 
Attachment 8 has a breakdown of what the increases would look like based on a 5% and 7% 
increase on an annual basis.  The average increase each year would be about $10 for a 5% 
increase and about $15 for a 7% increase.  In addition, the attachment has a comparison of 
several cities and their monthly SWM rate along with annual increases if known.   
     
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The above analysis provides only a couple of examples to address the SWM fund deficit 
spending and capital expenditure needs.  There are numerous combinations that can address the 
issues.  The purpose of this update is to give Council an overall scale of the issues at hand and 
answer any questions.  In addition, if Council would like to have any rate increase go into effect 
in 2015 we would need to pass a resolution and provide that information to King County prior to 
December 1st.    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:   
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager, Deputy Finance Director 

60 of 71



ATTACHMENT 1

61 of 71



ATTACHMENT 2

62 of 71



ATTACHMENT 3

63 of 71



64 of 71



ATTACHMENT 4

65 of 71



ATTACHMENT 5

66 of 71



ATTACHMENT 6

67 of 71



ATTACHMENT 7

68 of 71



ATTACHMENT 8

69 of 71



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  October 28, 2014 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, November 18, 2014 Special Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70 of 71



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, November 18, 2014                                                                                             City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  October 28, 2014 Special Joint Study Session with Arts Commission and October 28, 

2014 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Interlocal Agreement with Maple Valley for Storage of Deicer (Bates) 
C-4. HOME Program and the Regional Affordable Housing Program (Throm) 
C-5. Approve Contract for Public Defender Services (Scott) 
C-6. Approve Contract for Lobbyist Services (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider 2014 Legislative Agenda (Hendrickson) 
2. Consider Human Services Commission Recommendation for 2015/16 Funding (Throm) 
3. Consider Resolutions Amending 2014 Community Development Fees (Hart) 
4. 2014 Third Quarter Financial Report (Parker) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
 
ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 10/23/14 

 

71 of 71

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	10-28-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, October 28, 2014                                                                                                 City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE

	Consent Item 2 Green Sheet 10-28-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item 2 Attachment
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 10-28-14 Revenue Hearing Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 2015 Description of Revenue Sources
	TAXES
	Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) Real Estate Excise Tax Funds
	LICENSES AND PERMITS
	FINES AND FORFEITURES
	MISCELLANEOUS


	Item 1 Attachment 2 10-28-14 Forecast presentation
	City of Covington�Financial Forecast�2014 - 2020
	��“If all economists were laid end to end, they would not reach a conclusion.”�-George Bernard Shaw (1856-1950)�� ����
	Objectives
	A bird’s eye view
	  Potential headwinds/tailwinds
	The Real Washington
	Meanwhile closer to home…
	Covington – mixed signals?
	Property Tax
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Property tax math 101
	Sales Tax
	Slide Number 15
	Utility Tax
	Slide Number 17
	Real Estate Excise Tax
	Slide Number 19
	The meat and potatoes

	Item 1 Attachment 3 2014 - 2020 Forecast
	GF
	Street
	Parks

	Item 1 Attachment 4 2015 Prop Tax Worksheet - Presentation
	Sheet1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet Aquatic Center Temporary Art Selection Blue Sheet-10-28-14
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 3 Blue Sheet 10-28-2014 Appointment Arts Commission
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 4 Blue Sheet 10-28-14 Animal Control
	Item 5 Blue Sheet 10-28-14 SWM Rate Study
	Agenda Item 5

	Item 5 Attachments 10-28-14 SWM Rate Study Attachments
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	11-18-2014 Special Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, November 18, 2014                                                                                             City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item 1 Green Sheet 10-28-2014 Green Sheet Minutes Approval.pdf
	Consent Agenda Item C-1




